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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors (“Board”) take pleasure in presenting this 11th (Eleventh) Annual Report of Tapir
Constructions Limited (the “Company” or “TCL”), together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the audited financial statements of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2025 are as
under:
(X in Millions)

Particulars

For the year

Ended March

For the year
Ended March

31, 2025

31,2024

Total Revenue 23.30 24.80
Less:

Total Expenses 206.10 96.30
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (182.80) (71.50)
Exceptional items = -
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (182.80) (71.50)
Extraordinary items = S
Profit before tax (182.80) (71.50)

Tax expense: -
Current tax (including earlier years) - -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) - -

Profit / (Loss) after tax from continuing operations (182.80) (71.50)

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations after tax -

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations before tax - -

Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -

Profit / (Loss) for the period (182.80) (1,285.90)

Other Comprehensive Income 3.60 (0.50)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (179.20) (72.00)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Tapir Constructions Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Embassy Developments Limited (formerly
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited). The Company is engaged
in the business, inter alia, of construction and development of real estate projects and allied activities.

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business carried on by the
Company.

PERFORMANCE, PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

During FY 2024-25, the Company has incurred Loss of INR 179.20 million as compared to the Loss of INR
72 million earned in the previous Financial Year.




TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During FY 2024-25, the Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves on account of losses
incurred during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

As at March 31, 2025, your Company had no Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures.

During FY 2024-25, no company became or ceased to be Subsidiary or Joint Venture or Associate of the
Company.

DIVIDEND

During FY 2024-25, in view of the business requirements of the Company, the Board of Directors of the
Company has not recommended any dividend.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

During FY 2024-25, since, no amount was lying unpaid/ unclaimed with the Company for a period of seven
years or more, hence, the Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (“IEPF”) in terms of the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
framed thereunder.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, falling within
the ambit of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014, therefore the disclosures required in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are
not required to be given.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there has been no change in the share capital of the Company.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has raised an aggregate of INR 75 Crores by way of issuance
and allotment of 7,500 Senior, Secured, Non-Cumulative, Redeemable, Taxable, Rated, Listed Non-
Convertible Debentures of face value INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) (“NCDs”), on a Private
Placement basis. The Company has been regular in payments of interest thereon in terms of Disclosure
Document. As on March 31, 2025, total outstanding NCDs amounted to INR 250 Crores. These NCDs are
listed on WDM segment of BSE Limited.

CREDIT RATING

During the financial year 2024-25, the rating for NCDs instruments was revised from “IVR A - (CE)/ Rating
watch with Negative Implications” to “IVR A - (CE)/ Stable”. The revision in ratings of the Company is
on account of rating revision of the corporate guarantor (i.e. Holding Company) to such debt facilities. The
credit rating agency, however, took note of the continuity of the comfort from support from Diversified
Group with experienced management team, available Land Bank and strategic location of the project of the
Company.




The company is in a stable position to serve its debt needs and the management is committed towards
prepayment of its outstanding NCDs in an accelerated manner, if needed.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

As on March 31, 2025, the composition of the Board is in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made thereunder. The details of Directors and KMP are as follows:

1. Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (DIN: 10619417), Whole-time Director, designated as Key
Managerial Personnel.

2. Mr. Uday Shyamnarayan Dubey (DIN: 10166767), Non-Executive Director.

3. Mr. Amit Roshan Bhagat (DIN: 10163776), Non-Executive Director

4. Mr. Yatharth, Company Secretary, designated as Key Managerial Personnel.

During the FY 2024-25, the following changes were occurred in the composition of Board of Directors/
KMPs of your Company:

a) Appointment of Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (DIN: 10619417), as Whole-time Director
(Additional) and Key Managerial Personnel, designated as Whole-time Director of the Company
w.e.f. July 10, 2024 who was regularized as Director by shareholders at their Annual General
Meeting held in the year 2024.

b) Appointment of Mr. Yatharth, Company Secretary, designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company w.e.f. January 09, 2025.

¢) Resignation of Mr. Sameer Khanna (DIN: 10162281), as Whole-time Director, designated as Key
Managerial Personnel w.e.f. July 10, 2024.

d) Resignation of Ms. Vartika Jain, Company Secretary, designated as Key Managerial of the
Company w.e.f. January 09, 2025.

Subsequent to the closure of Financial Year, Mr. Yatharth resigned from the position of Company Secretary
w.e.f. June 09, 2025 and Mr. Avik Gupta was appointed in her place as the Company Secretary w.e.f. June
09, 2025.

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in terms of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM of the Company and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment.

The required details of director(s) seeking approval for appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing AGM of
the Company, including nature of expertise in specific functional areas and names of the Companies in which
they hold Directorship and other details, as stipulated in applicable Secretarial Standards, are provided in the
Notice of AGM.

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified to hold office in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules framed thereunder and other laws for the time being in force.

BOARD MEETINGS

During FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors of the Company met twelve times. The intervening gap between
these meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act 2013 read with Secretarial Standard-
1. The details of such meetings are given in Annual Return i.e. form MGT-7.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS




Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder,
your company is not required to carry out the performance evaluation of Board, its Committees and
Individual Directors.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder are not
applicable to your Company. Hence, it is not required to formulate the policy on Appointment of Directors
and their Remuneration and disclosure of salient features thereof in this report.

AUDITORS
(a) Statutory Auditors

M/s Raj Girikshit & Associates (Firm Registration No. 022280N), the Statutory Auditors of the
Company were appointed by the members at their Annual General Meeting (AGM), held in the year
2024, for a period of five years i.e. until the conclusion of the AGM, to be held in the year 2029.

The Auditors’ Report, issued by the Statutory Auditors, on the audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year 2024-25, does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer and is self-explanatory & therefore does not call for any further explanation. No fraud has
been reported by the Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and Rules framed thereunder.

(b) Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, the Company had appointed M/s S. Khandelwal & Co., Company Secretaries, a firm of
Company Secretaries in practice as its Secretarial Auditors, to conduct the secretarial audit of the
Company for the financial year 2024-25.

The Company has provided all assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications etc. to the
Secretarial Auditors for conducting their audit.

The Secretarial Audit Report, for the financial year 2024-25, is annexed as “Annexure 1” and forms
part of this Report. The report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks and
is self-explanatory & therefore, does not call for any further explanations.

() Internal Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s R N Marwah & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 001211N/N500019) as an Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25.

(d) Cost Auditors & Cost Auditors Report

The requirement of maintenance of cost records, as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable Rules framed thereunder,
is not applicable on the Company, and accordingly, such records have not been made and maintained
by the Company

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors, in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, hereby state and confirm that:




a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected
and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, as at March 31,
2025 and the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) proper internal financial controls are in place and such financial controls are adequate and are
operating effectively; and

f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place and are
adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The requirement to disclose particulars of Employees/ Managerial Remuneration Details pursuant to
Sections 134(3) and 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees or securities and investments covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the financial statements of the Company for FY 2024-25.

Further, during the FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment companies.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, no materially significant related party transaction was entered into by the Company with its
Related Party, Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All the related party transactions entered into by the
Company, during the financial year, were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.
Hence the disclosure of information in the Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

Further, your Directors wish to draw the attention of the members to Notes to the Financial Statements which
sets out detailed disclosures on Related Party Transactions.

WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Annual Return
as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website on https://embassyindia.com/sylvanus/.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, compliance with applicable laws
and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to ensure that responsibilities are
discharged effectively.




MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred
between the date of end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2025 till the date of this Report.

Further, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals, impacting
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo,
is as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company uses energy for its office equipment such as computers, lighting and utilities at its work
premises. As an ongoing process the following measures are undertaken to conserve energy:

a) Implementation of viable energy saving proposals.

b) Installation of automatic power controllers to save maximum charges and energy.

c) Awareness and training sessions, at regular intervals, to concerned operational personnel on
opportunities of energy conservation and their benefits.

B. Technology Absorption

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and innovative
technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. Next Generation Business
Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that while data continues to grow, decision
makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & critical level decision making. The Company has
implemented best of the breed applications to manage and automate its business processes to achieve higher
efficiency, data integrity and data security. It has helped it in implementing best business practices and
shorter time to market new schemes, products and customer services. The Company has taken major
initiatives for improved employee experience and efficient Human resource management, by implementing
world class HRMS application and empowering them by providing mobile platform to manage their work
while on the go.

The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational cost and
development of new business opportunities.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated robust
business Risk Management framework to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. This
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on its business objectives and enhance its
competitive advantage. It defines the risk management approach across the Company including the
documentation and reporting. At present, the Company has not identified any element of risk which may
threaten its existence.




COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of sections 177(1) and 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 6 of
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and Rule 4(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Company, being a wholly owned
subsidiary, is exempt from the requirement of constituting Audit Committee of the Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable Rules
made thereunder, the Company was not required to contribute any amount towards CSR activities during the
financial year 202425, as it had average net losses during the immediately preceding three financial years.
However, the Company constantly strives to ensure strong corporate culture which emphasizes on
integrating CSR values with business objectives.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of its
business operations.

To maintain these standards, Embassy Developments Limited, the ultimate Holding Company has, at group
level (including all the subsidiaries companies) implemented the Whistle Blower Policy (“the Policy”), to
provide an avenue for employees to report matters without the risk of subsequent victimization,
discrimination or disadvantage. The Policy applies to all the employees working for the Group. Pursuant to
the Policy, the whistle blowers can raise concerns relating to matters such as fraud, bribery, corruption,
employee misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of Company’s funds/assets etc. A whistle-blowing or
reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites all employees to act responsibly to uphold the
reputation of the Group. The Policy aims to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed
and are recognized as an enabling factor in administering good governance practices.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace, in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

i number of complaints of sexual harassment received in FY 2024-25- NIL
ii.  number of complaints disposed off during FY 2024-25- NIL
ili.  number of cases pending for more than ninety days - NIL

The Company has an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company confirms
compliance with the provisions relating to the constitution and functioning of the Internal Complaints
Committee under the aforementioned Act.

COMPLIANCE OF MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961

The Company hereby affirms its unwavering commitment to ensuring full compliance with the provisions
of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. In line with the said act, the Company guarantees that all eligible female




employees are provided with the entitled maternity benefits, including paid maternity leave and related
welfare provisions. The Company has implemented such measures that prioritize the health, well-being, and
dignity of women employees, reinforcing its dedication to fostering an inclusive and supportive work
environment.

DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review, no applications were made, or case was pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF VALUATION DONE WITH RESPECT TO LOANS TAKEN FROM BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

During the year under review, there was no one time settlement made in respect of loan taken from Banks
or Financial Institutions.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied with the provisions of applicable Secretarial
Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relating to Meetings of the
Board, its Committee and the General Meetings during the period under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, creativity,
integrity and continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization of all its resources
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Your directors also wish to express their gratitude for the continuous assistance and support received from
investors, clients, bankers, regulatory and government authorities, during the year.
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Place:- New Delhi Tapir Constructions Limited
Date:- August 11, 2025
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Whole Time Director Director
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[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appo
Remuneration ol Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014

To

The Members

Tapir Constructions Limited

Office No 202, 2" Floor, A-18. Rama House,
Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

provisions and the

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 1
rhe

adherence to good corporate practices by Tapir Constructions Limited (hereinafter called
*Company’) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory comphiaiives
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, torms and returns Nled and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company. its officers.
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. We hereby report that in our
opinion. the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 312023

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board

processes and compliance-mechanism in place 1o the extent. in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions ol the
following. as amended from time to time, and to the extent applicable:

i, The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

i The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA™) and the rules made thereunder. [Not
Applicable to the Company during the period under review]

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder

iv.  Foreign [xchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 1o the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Qverseas Direct Investment and Laternal Commercial
Borrowings. [Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review |

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board ol
India Act. 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Seccurities and LExchange Board ol India (Substantial Aequisition o Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 including the provisions with regard w disclosures fmd
maintenance of records required under the said Regulations. [Not Applicable 1'0 L!h\
Company during the period under review]| &
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d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-COMVertine
Securities) Regulations, 2021.

¢.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Bascd Employce R ;ujd H“'ﬁ“
Equity) Regulations, 2021. [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period
under review]

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 10 an fssue and Share rapste
Agents) Regulations. 1993 regarding the Companies Act. 2013 and dealing with client 1o
the extent of the securitics issued. [Not Applicable to the Company durimg the il
period under review|

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Fquity Shares) Regulations.

2021 [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period under review | and

h. The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Sceuritics) Regulations. 2018
[Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period under review |:

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

vi.  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

« Taxation Laws

« Labour and Social Security Laws — such as Employees State Insurance Act. 1918: Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972; Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act. 1970: \Maternin
Benefit Act, 1961, The Equal Remuneration Act 1976: Employees Provident | unds i
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

« IT Related Laws — Information Technology Act, 2000.
Real Estate Laws- Housing Board Act. 1965, Transter of Property Act. 1882, Building and
Other Construction Workers (Regulation ol Employment & Conditions ol Service) Act. |99,

« Miscellaneous Laws — The Electricity Act, 2003; Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. ‘

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by th
. - ) s . Y 5 it - ~ E X = b b T b (3
Institute of Company Secretaries ol India w.r.L. Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS - 1) and General

Meeting (SS - 2).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the \o1. Rul
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. Lo Rules

We further report that during the Audit period:
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& The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance ol Faccutiv
Directors. Non-Lixecutive Directors. The changes in the composition ol the Board ol Dircctors that
took place during the period under review, were carried out in complianee with the provisians ul il
Acl.

& 1n compliance with applicable provisions ol the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and

Secrctarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Sccretaries of India. adequate notices

siven to all directors to schedule the Board Mectings. and the agenda and detailed notes onavends

were sent. in compliance with the provisions of the Act read with Secrctarial Standard-1

f

< A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,
< All decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority.

< As per the records. the Company has duly filed all the returns. documents and resolutions. Torms. as
were required 10 be filed with the Registrar of Companies and other authoritics and all the Tormaldities
relating to the same are in compliance with the Act.

We have not examined Compliance with respect to applicable financial laws. like direet and indirect tas
laws. since the same have been subject 1o review by statutory linancial audit and other doestenaed
professionals.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws. rules.
regulations and guidelines. The Company has introduced compliance alert system for applicability ol all

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:

1. During the year under review, the Company has raised an aggregate of INR 757Crores by way of
issuance of 17,500 Senior Secured, Non-Cumulative, Redeemable, Taxable. Rated. Listed
Debentures of face value [NR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) ("NCDs"). on a Private
Placement basis. The Company has been regular in payment of interest thereon in terms of
Disclosure Document. As on March 31, 2025, total outstanding NCDs amounted w INR I~
Crores. These NCDs are listed on WM segment o BSL: [imited.

J
FCS No.: 5945
C P No.: 6128
UDIN: FUUS94SGUU()838348
Place: New Delhi
Date: 22/07/ 2025
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Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A™ and
forms an integral part of this report.

To

Annexure A

The Members,

Tapir Constructions Limited

Office No 202. 2" Floor, A-18, Rama Housc,
Middle Circle. Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(N

)

(6)

(7)

UDIN:

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management ol the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these seerctarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the complianee ol
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Taws. rules. reculations.
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited o the verification ol

procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor ol
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management as conducted the allairs ol the
Company.

The maximum liability of our firm under the secretarial audit in respect of the aggregate of all
claims shall not exceed the fee charged by us.

=0
]*‘(}05945(}0(}0838348

Place: New Pelhi
PDate: 22/07/ 2025

Daan A nfd



/N RAJ GIRIKSHIT & ASSOCIATES RAJ GIRIKSHIT

& ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Tapir Constructions Limited
Reportt on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tapir Constructions Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its loss
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Head Office : . _Second Offica ; - Telefax : 011-43045353
19, Third Floor, K. K. Business Center, 112A, First Floor, 19, Surya' Kiran Building, Ermall : info@rajgirikshit.com
Veer Savarkar Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092 KG Marg, New Delhi-110001



We have determined the matters described below to

communicated in our report.

be the key audit matters to be

Key Audit Matter

Audit Response

—

Assessing the carrying value of inventory

The accounting policies for Inventories are set
out in Note 5.8 to the financial statements.
Inventories of the Company comprise of real
estate properties (including land) are disclosed
under Note 9.

Impairment  assessment of inventory s
considered as a significant risk as there is a risk
that recoverability of the cartying value of the
inventory could not be established, and potential
impairment charge might be tequired to be
recorded in  the financial  statements.
Management’s assessment of the recoverable
amounts is a judgmental process which requires
the estimation of the net realisable value, which
takes into account the valuations of the
properties held and cash flow projections of real
estate properties under development.

Due to their materiality in the context of the
financial statements as a whole and significant
degree of judgement and subjectivity involved in
the estimates and key assumptions used in
determining the cash flows used in the
impairment evaluation, this is considered to be
the area which had the greatest effect on our
overall audit strategy and allocation of resources
in planning and completing our audit.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventory held
by the included, but not limited to the followings:

We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made by the management for the impairment
losses recognized in accordance with applicable accounting
standards.

Obtained an understanding  of the management
process for identification of possible impairment
indicators and process performed by the management
for impairment testing and the management process of
determining the Net Realisable Value (NRVY;

Enquired of the management and inspected the
internal controls related to inventory valuation along
with the process followed to recover/adjust these and
assessed whether impairment is required;

All material properties under development as at 31
March 2025 were discussed on case-to-case basis with
the management for their plan of recovery/adjustment;

For real estate properties under development, obtained
and assessed the management evaluation of the NRV,
We also assessed the management’s valuation
methodology applied in determining the recoverable
amount and tested the underlying assumptions used by
the management in arriving at those projections;

We challenged the management on the underlying
assumptions used for the cash flow projections,
considering evidence available to support these
assumptions and our understanding of the business:

Where the management involved specialists to petform
valuations, evaluated the objectivity and independence
of those specialists;

For land parcels, obtained and verified the valuation of
land parcels as per the government prescribed circle
rates, wherever NEcessary;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the cash flow
projections; and

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible

for the other information. Other information

does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s repott thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

and we will not




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

I£, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other
information is obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whethet due to fraud or error.

In prepating the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial sta tements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
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not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
ot the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concetn.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactons
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(1i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
televant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter ot when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The audit of financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2024 was carried out and reported
by Agarwal Prakash & Co. vide their unmodified audit report dated 25 April 2024, whose audit
teport has been furnished to us by the management of the Company. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As requited by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Otrder, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable,

that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agteement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the
Act and paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014;

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statement as at 31 March 2025- Refer note-45 to the financial statements

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity




Vi,

(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing ot otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

As stated in note 49 to the financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April
2024, has used an accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except that, the
audit trail logs were not enabled for changes made using privileged access rights for direct
data changes at the database level. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other than the consequential
impact of the exception given above. Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that the audit
trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting
software for the petiod 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

(1) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company did not pay any remuneration to its Directors during the year.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registrgfion No.: 022280

Gaurav Goya,
Partner
Membership No.: 5186}
UDIN: 255 lggq 3ty p
Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, based
on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
notmal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

®

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:

(@)(A) The Company has maintained propet tecords showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B) The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(1)(a)(B) of the
order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company’s management catries out the
physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment once in a year. In our
opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and nature of its assets. As explained to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed by the management on such physical verification.

(¢) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company does not have
any immovable property. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable 1o
the Company.

(d) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not revalued its Propetty,
Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(1)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(e) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, there are no proceedings initiated ot pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventories held by the Company comprise stocks of units in completed
projects and work in progress of the projects under development. Having regard to
the nature of the Inventory, the management has conducted physical verification of
inventory by way of verification of title deeds, site visits conducted, and continuous
project progress monitoting by competent persons at reasonable intetvals during the
year, and no material discrepancies wete noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause
3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, during the year, the company has not made
any investments in or has not provided any guarantee or security or has not granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii)
(@) to (f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it, as

applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or
deemed deposits to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are
applicable. Accordingly, reporting under pata 3(v) is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained to us, the Central Government has
not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148
of the Act, in respect of Company's products/services. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited to the appropriate authorities, Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the dues outstanding of Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess on account of any dispute,
are as follows:

’T\Tame ofthe | Nature of | Gross | Period to which Forum where
statute dues Amount the amount dispute is pending
€4 relates
Millions

)
The Central Reversal of 3.60 Balances as at Dy. Com, Div-III,
Goods & credit 30.06.2017 in CGST & CE.,
Service tax Act, | claimed in Trans-1 Mumbai
2017 Trans-1
The Central Verificatio 0.10 July-17 to State Tax officer
Goods & n of Trans- March-18 (Sachin Prahlad
Service tax Act, | 1 credit Manore)
2017




(viii)

(1x)

(%)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has
been surrendered ot disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961), that has not been recorded in the
books of account.

() According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of
loans or borrowings and interest thereon payable to any banks and other lenders.
The Company does not have any borrowings from financial institutions or
government. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our audit procedures, the Company has not been declared 2 wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our audit procedures, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
petformed by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt Instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the coutse of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any Instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

5 o
Nt S
7Bg Agcod



(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv)

(xv)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this
report.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures

performed by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accoun ting standards,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit is performed as per a planned program approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company. We have considered the reports of the Internal
Auditor for the year under audit, issued to the Company till date.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not entered
nto any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve

(scvi)

(svi)

Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

() The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course
of audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The company has incurted cash losses of ¥ 177.60 millions in the cutrent financial

year 2024-25 and cash losses of ¥ 72.90 millions during immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xix)

(xx)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and subject to
the Note — 51(d), nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reggstration No.: 022280N

Gau
Partner
Membershjp

4l
al

No.: 51859

UDIN: 2551849 @M P S &1

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 Ma

y 2025



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Repott to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even
date.

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tapir
Constructions Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Conttrols

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as requited
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with teference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
prepatation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
ficcessaty to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
petiods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material tespects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
ICAL

For Raj Girikshit & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner $
Membership No.: 518698 ~/eg AccOS
UDIN: 25518698BM1PAM 5311
Place: Delhi

Date: 29 May 2025



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

All amount in € millions, unless othervise stated

Balance Sheet as at

I

1L

ASSETS
Non-current assets

(@) Property, plant and equipment
{b) Other intangible assets

{c} Financial assets

Other financial assets
(d) Non-current tax assets, net

Current assets
{) Inventories
(b} Finaneial Assets

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other fmancial assets

{c} Other current assets

Taotal of Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b} Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabiliries
Borrowings
Lease Hability
(b} Provisions

Current liabilities

(n) Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liability
Trade payables

-total entstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
(1) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

Total of Equity and Liabilities

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integeal part of the financial statements,

This 1s the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates

Place: Delhi

Drate: 29 May 2025

UDIN- 2551 B698BM 1 PAMS S|

Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6A 640 3.00
6B = %
TA 7.00 0.20

8 3340 31.00
46,80 36.20
9 604040 4,813.00
10 20.30 87.20
11 30.40 92.70
12 2,50 59.90
B 10.40 D.60
13 50.50 6840
6,163.50 5,038.80
6,210.30 5,075.00
_—
14 0.50 0.30
(2,268.60) (2,117.50)
(2,268.10) (2,117.00)

154 2432.00 1,682.70
164 1.20 0.30
17A 10.50 810

244370 1,691.60
15B 2,006.80 1,857.80
168 0.60 0.50
13
17.20 10,50
165.30 103.00
19 17.80 1150
20 3,826.80 3,516,90
178 0.20 0.20
6,034.70 5,500.40
6,210.30 5,075.00
5

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

hishek Rajninath Surve Amit Roshan Bhagat
Whole-time director Director
[DIN: 10619417] [DIN: 10163776]
W
\KA«& Y
Yatharth
Company Secretary



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

All amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue
Revenue from operations 21 2.60 7.90
Other income 22 20.70 16.90
RS L ez = JOO
Total of Revenue 23.30 24.80
—_— _
Expenses
Cost of revenue 23
Cost incurred during the year 1,227 40 688.90
(Increase) /Decrease in real estare properties (1,227.40) - 688.90) =
Employee benefits expense 24 108.30 55.40
Finance costs 25 11.70 0.10
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6A&D 2.20 1.20
Other expenses 26 #3.90 39.60
Total of Expenses 206.10 96.30
_
Loss before tax (182.80) (7L.50)
Tax expense 27
Current tax (including earlier years) -
Deferred tax chasge/(credit) % -
Loss after tax (182.30! { 3150)
Other comprehensive income
A (1) Ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3.60 (0.50)
(ii} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - =
B (i) Trems thar will be reclassified ta profit or loss = =
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Total other comprehensive income net of tax 3.60 0.50
—_—
Total comprehensive income for the year (1'?920: 72.00
Earnings per equity share 28
Basic %) (3,654.38) (1,430.52)
Diluted &) (3,654.38) (1,430.52)
Summary of material accounting policies 5
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date
For Raj Girikshit & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartefell Accountants }(
Firm
Gau Abhishek Rajninath Surve Amit Roshan Bhagat
Partner Whole-time director Director

Membership Numbd

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025

VOIN - 2551869 § pM I PAMSE ()

[DIN: 10619417 [DIN: 10163776]

Mttt

Yatharth
Company Secretary



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before income tax For the year {182.80) (7L50)
Adfurtments for:
- Interest on lease labilities 0.20 .10
- Interest expenses on taxations .00 -
- Interest on income tax refund (.00 -
- Interest income on feced deposits (050 (9104
- Deprecianon and amortsation expense 2,30 1.20
- Income on fair valuation of financial assers (1.50) (250
- Modification profit on de-recognition of lese contracts (010
- Provision for geamity and compensated absences 5.90 200
- Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds (ner) (6.9 (3.30)
- Provision for service tax refund 3.60 -
- Corporate Guarantee charges 11.50 -
- Balances Wrtten Back {0.10) 0.00
- Excess provision written Back (10.68) -
Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjustments (179.18) (83.10%
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Inventories (922.10) 1347.60)
Trade Payables 6900 37.50
Other current assets 14.50 (35.940)
Other fnancial liabilities, other liabilities 327.58 454.50
Cash used in operating activities (690.20) (194.60)
Income tax (paid) / refund received, net (2400 (4,800
Net cash used in operating activitics (692.60) (19940
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (3.50) {2.00)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds, net 66.20 132.10
Investment in fixed deposits - (57.0d0)
Proceeds on maturity of fixed deposits 57.00 -
Interest received on fxed deposits .90 9.30
Net cash generated from investing activities 120.60 8180
C. Cash flow from financing activities: (Refer Noce: 48)
Repayment of inter-corperate borrowings (8,9635.60) (594.70)
Proceeds from inter-corparate boreowings 9,114.60 -
Proceeds from issue of non convertible debenmures Ta0.00 1.750.0d
Redemption of non convernble debenrures - {1,000.00}
Payment of lease liabiliies {inclusive of mterest paid amounting to T0.10 millions (31 March 2024 -
010 rmullions) (0.60) (0.40)
Other Borrowing Costs (31.00) {T2.30)
Interest pasd on loan and advances from others (274.70) {136.00)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 502.70 (53.40)
D. Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, net (A+B+C) 20.70 (171.00)
E. Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.70 180.70
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 30.40 9.70
G. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash on hand 010 n1o
Balances with scheduled banks
- In curvent accounts 3030 .60
30.40 9.70
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemnents,
This is the statement of cash flows referred to m our report of even dare.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Abhisiek Rajninath Surve an Bhagat

Place: Deetbn
Date: 29 May 2025

VOIN- 25518 698eM | pAMSE1 |

Wheolg-time director

ot

Company Secretary

Direcror
[DIN: 101637746]



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025

(A) Equity share capital*

All amount in € millions, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Opening balance as at | Issue of equity share Balance as at Issue of equity share Balance as at

01 April 2023 capital during the year 31 March 2024 capital during the year | 31 March 2025
Equity share capital 0.50 - 0.50 S 0.50

(B) Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Ot‘her comprehensive
income - Reserve
Total
Other component of Retained : Remeasurement of
equity SmeC Camings | Jefined benefit plans
Opening balance as at 01 April 2023 - {2,045.50) - (2,045.50)
Loss for the year (71.50) - (71.50)
Other comprehensive income - (0.50) (0.50)
Corporate guarantee given by holding company ~ = 2 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - (2,117.00) (0.50) (2,117.50)
Loss for the year (182.80) - (182.80)
Other comprehensive income - - 3.60 3.60
Corporate guarantee given by holding company 28.10 = = 28.10
Balance as at 31 March 2025 28.10 (2,299.80) 3.10 (2,268.60)
*Refer Note - 14 for details
The accompanying notes form an integral past of the financial statements
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Raj Girikshit & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DELH Amit Roshan Bhagat

Partner FRNQ22260N Whole-time director Director

Membership Number: 5

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025

[DIN: 10619417]

S\ et

Voin- 25518698 BM| PAM S &)

Yatharth
Company Secretary

[DIN: 10163776]



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2025

Nature of principal activities

Tapir Constructions Limited (‘the Company’) having CIN: U70200D1L2014PLC267441 was incorporated on (02
April 2014. The Company is engaged in the development of real estate projects and other related and ancillary
activities. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is situated at Office no 202, 2nd Floor, A-

18, Rama House, Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001 in the same jutisdiction under Registrar of
Companies New Delhi.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA?), as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’ or ) which is the functional cutrency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except where otherwise indicated. Where value is less
than ¥ 50,000.00, the same is mentioned as ¥ 0.00.

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS petmits options is disclosed hereunder.

The Company has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising
judgements and considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and
nature of the item or condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could
make the information more likely to impact the decisions of the usets of the financial statements.

Entity’s conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in
the accounting standards.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Accounting Standatd is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto
adopted.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 29 May 2025. The tevision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Directors after

obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as pet provisions of Companies Act,
2013.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Cotporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March
2025, MCA notified new accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the
company financial statements. Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in
particulatly related to sale and lease back transactions, which has an applicability from 01 April 2024, and has no
significant impact on financial statements.

On 07 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating
exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2025. The Company is cutrently assessing the probable impact of these amendments
on its financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as

o DELM
| FRN-022280N

o



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the yeat ended
31 March 2025

explained in relevant accounting policies. Fair vahuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities ate
categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degtee to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below. These were used throughout all petiods presented in the financial statements.

5.1 Current versus non-current classification

For the purpose of Current / Non-Current classification, the Company has reckoned its normal operating cycle as
twelve months based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs ate included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approptiate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of
useful lives (as set out below) presctibed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life
Building — temporaty structure 1 year
Plant and machinery 12 yeats
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 yeats
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal ot when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss atising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised
in statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

5.3 Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurenent

Intangible assets (software’s) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization critetia are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the putchase price.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period in the four years from the date of its acquisition.
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TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2025

De-recognition
Intangible assets are de-recognised upon disposal or when no further economic benefits ate expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss atising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the
asset is de-recognised.

5.4 Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurenent

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

® Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and intetest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired ot
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement — Amortised cost

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Initial and subsequent recognition and measurement — fair value

A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL’) if it is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVIPL are measured at fair value and net gain/losses, including any
interest expense are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

De-rscognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged ot cancelled or expites.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange ot modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective cartying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2025

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is teported in the balance sheet if there is a
cutrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.5 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward looking
information to assess expected ctredit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit

losses ate the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,
else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

5.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based
on internal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash
generating unit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset ot cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its catrying amount, the catrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there
is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognised are accordingly
reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

5.7 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss ot inventorized as a
part of real estate properties under development, as the case may be. The Company’s contributions towards
provident fund are deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner under a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in
the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaties.

Current service cost is computed using actuarial assumptions and net interest using discount rate determined at
the start of the annual reporting period. However, if an entity re-measures the net defined benefit liability (asset),




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 Matrch 2025

amendment, curtailment or settlement using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measure the net defined benefit

liability (asset). Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other
comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -
tetm employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis
of the amount paid or payable for the petiod during which services are rendered by the employee.

5.8 Inventories

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and
external development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materials, borrowing costs and
related overhead costs and is valued at lower of cost of net realizable vahie.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.

5.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies
the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Revenue frons sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentially complete and
credit risks have been significantly eliminated. The performance obligations are considered to be complete when
control over the property has been transferred to the buyer ie. offer for possession (possession request letter) of
properties have been issued to the customers and substantial sales consideration is received from the customers.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring propetty to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties (for example, indirect taxes). The consideration promised in a contract with a customet may include fixed
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), ot both.

For each petformance obligation identified, the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the
performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does not
satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable
is recognised by the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition
where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required.

When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a
contract asset ot a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s petformance and the
customer’s payment.




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 Match 2025

The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the period
such changes are determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues from the
contracts, the loss is recoghized immediately.

5.10 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when thete is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates ate reviewed at each

reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
whete the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

® Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by futute events not wholly within the control of the
Company ot

® Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised not disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain,
related asset is recognised.

5.11 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related
disclosures.

Significant managenent, judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferted tax assets can be recognized is based on an

assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Signiftcant estimates

Revenue and inventoties — The estimates around total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of underlying construction
and service contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes,
claims and other payments to the extent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For
the purpose of making estimates for claims, the Company used the available contractual and historical
information. The estimates of the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such
estimates is recognised in the period such changes are determined.
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Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2025

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.

Vatiation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit
expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management uses
the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an
arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank )




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in € millions, unless otherwise stated

Note - 6A
Property, plant and equipment
Particulars Office Computers  Furniture  Right of - Building  Plant & Total
equipment and fixtures use-assets# Machinery
Gross carrying amount
At 01 Aprl 2023 0.50 0.50 1.20 - = 1.30 3.50
Addidons 0.00 1.90 - 160 0.40 0.20 4.10
Disposals/assets written off 0.20 - - - - - 0.20
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.30 2.40 1.20 1.60 0.40 1.50 7.40
Additions 0.70 1.30 - 1.90 0.50 0.00 4.40
Disposals/assets written off - - - 1.30 - - 1.30
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1.00 3.70 1.20 220 0.90 1.50 10,50
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2023 0.40 0.10 0.70 - - 0.30 1.50
Charge for the year 0.10 (.40 0.10 .40 0.00 0.10 1.10
Adjustments for disposals 0.20 - - - - - 0.20
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.30 0.50 0.80 0.40 0.00 0.40 2.40
Charge for the year 0.10 1.10 0.10 0.60 0.20 0.10 2.20
Adjustments for disposals 0.00 - - 0.50 - - 0.50
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.40 1.60 0.90 0.50 0.20 0.50 4.10
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 0.00 1.90 0.40 1.20 0.40 1.10 5.00
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 0.60 2.10 0.30 1.70 0.70 1.00 6.40

(1) There is no restriction on title of the property, plant and equipment. Noze of the property, plantand equipment has been pledged as security.

(i) There are no contractual commirments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(iii) #Leashold Office workspaces please also refer note no.31.

Note - 6B
Intangible assets
Details of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and reconciliation of their careying amounts from beginning to end of reporting pedod is as

follows:

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying amount

At 01 April 2023 .10 0.10
Additions - -
Disposals/assets written off 0.10 0.10
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -
Additions - -

Disposals /assets written off = 8
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - P

Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2023 X
Charge for the year 0.10 0.10
Adjustments for disposals 0.10 0.10
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -
Charge for the year = 2

Adjustments for disposals - s
Balance as at 31 March 2025 % ~

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 - -
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 - -
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5 v of 1 g policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in T millions, unless othernise stated
As ar As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note -7
A Other financial assets - non-current
Oither deposin® (.40 .20
Financial Guarantee asser B.00 -
700 0.20
“BEE Limited Debt Securities Recovery Expense Fund
B Other financial assets - current
Secunity deposit .50 0.60
Financial Guarantee assét 9.00) Eh
A e
Nate - 8
Non-current tax assets, net
Advance meome tax, including bax deducred at source 33.40 3100
33.40 3100
Note -9
Inventories
Real estate properties - under development, at cost
Land* 2,503.20 2,503.20
Cost of materials, construction cost and other ovedheads 3,482.60 2,290,100
Construcnon marerials in stock 540l 19.80
6,040.40 4.513.00
During the yeas, the company has inventoried boreowing cost of 2 27510 millians (Previous year T136.30 millions),
*Also refer note 15 for mortgage detail,
Note - 10
Investments - current
(i) Investment in mutual funds (quoted)
Trust MF Overnight Fund (OF-DG)* 20,30 19.99
24,265.577 {previous year: 17,594.577) units, NAV: T 12086806 {peevious yean R1133.6423) peruni]
Trust MF Liguid Fund {LE-D{G) - g 6220
Il {previous year: 53,102442) unirs, MAV: Nil (previous year T 1170.5838) per unit]
Trust MF Liquid Fund (LF-DG) - 510
il (previous pear: 4,328,636) units, NAV: Mil {peevious year T 1170.5838) per unit]
29.30 B87.20

*OF the above Investment in munel fund, investment worth T 29,30 millions (24,265,577 Unied), (31 March 2024 % 19.90 millicns (17,594.577 Units)} ace pledged or lien marked.

Naote - 11
Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash on hand 00 10
Balances with banks
In current accounts 3030 .60
30.40 9.70
Note - 12
Orther bank balunces
Bank deposits*
With maturity of more than theee months and up o ovelve menths 250 50.50
With matun:ty of maze than twelve months - -
250 59.50
Less: Non-cuerent bank balances in fixed deposivaccounts - 250 - 59.50
Inrecest Aceened on bank deposits 0.00 040
250 59.90

* Fixed deposit (excluding acensed inteeest) with banks of T2.50 millions (31 March 2024: $2.50 millions) are pledged for the purpose of Bank Guarantes Issued in favour of Mahasashie Pollution
Control Board,

Note - 13
Other current assets
(U d, idered good, unless otherwise stated)
Mobilization advances’ 390 550
Advance to material [ service providers 4530 S8.20
Prepaid expenses 110 Lon
Balances with stamtory authorities 370 LX)

Less: Provision for seevice tax refund* (.60 I8 ] - 360
Othess 010 (.10

50.50 68.40

_

“Theee is a service rax refund of T3.60 millions receivable from stanuory authorities, which was acerued on reversal of demand on cancellation 6F unifs in eadier yeacs. The company has filed an
application for a refund with stinutory suthoities, but the same is peading to be received, Duting the current financial year, as a matter of prudence, the company has taken peovision aganst this amount.
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5 of ial ing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
Alf amoune in T millions, unless otherwise stated
Agat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 14
Equity share capital
i Authorised MNumber Amount MNumber Amount
Equity share capiral of face value of T 10 each 50,000 0.50 50,000 (.50
50,000 .50 50,000 0.50
i Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity share eapital of face value oF % 10 each filly paid up 0000 0.50 50,000 0,50
50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50
—
iii Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares
Balance ar the beginning of the year 50,000 0.50 S0,00 050
Add: Issued during the vear 2 > : -
Less: Redesmed during the year & . - =
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 0.50 50,000 .50
e
iv  Rights, pref and it hed to equity shares

(0]

(i)

"The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends a5 declared From hime 1o time, andl ase entited to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
the temaining assets of the Company shall be disteibuted o the holders of equity shares in proportion o the number of shares held 1 the ot equity shaves owtstanding 1= on thar date. All shaces rank
equally with regard 1o the Company’s residual assets.

50,000 (previous year 50,000} equity shares of the Company i held by holding company namely Embassy Develag Limited (Foemesly known as Equinow India Developments Limited, and earlisr
Indizgbulls Real Esate Limited),

Deils of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital

MName of the equity sharcholder Number of shares Number of shares
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerdy known as Equinox Tndia 30400 0000

Drevelopments Limited, and eadier Indiabulls Real Escate Limated) (ncluding
nomines shares)

Company does not have any shares issued for consideeation cther than cash during the immediately preceding five yeaes. Company did not buy back any shares during immediarely preceding five years,

Note - 15

Borrowings non-current

Secured loans:

Non-tonvemible debentures (refer note (1) below)#§ 232,00 1,682.70

2!432.00 11682.70

Borrowings - current
Unsecured loans:

Loans and advances from related parties* 2,006:80 1,857.80

%006.8-0 1,857.80

!

“Repayable on demand and carnes no intesest.

Repayment terms (including current maturities) and security details for non-convertible debentures ©

Particulars Maturity date Security details | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 in millions) | (¥ in millions)
Red; ible nen-to ible deb issued on 18 January 2024 for T Daoc o door tenor of 36 months from the date of allotment| Refer Note it below 2,500.00 1,750.00]

1750 millions of fice value ¥ 1 million each. This carvies interest rate of of MCDs subject to Pactial Prepayments.
13.50%, Redeemable non-convertible debentures (Tranche [T} further fgsued
o 12 Novenber 2024 for T 75 millions of face value of T 1 million each.
This carries interest tate of 13.50%.

# These non-convernble debentures are listed on the Wholesale Debt Marker segment of BSE Limired.
3 For financial vear 2024-25, the amount T 243200 millions cepresents NCDs of T 2,500,00 millions less: TndAs adiustment of T 68.00 millions and For fnancial year 2(023-24, the amount T 1,682 70
milliens represents NCDs of T 1,750.00 millions less: IndAs adjustment of T 67,30 millions.

Derail of Security- non ible deh

1) These non-convertible debentures are secured by ficst canking part pasm charge on unsold inventery and receivables of the project & Mega Mall Jodhpur project of one of its Fellow subsidiary company-
Sepset Real Estate Limited

b} These non-convertible dehennaes are further secure by the corporate guarantes of Embagsy Developments Limited (Formeely known as Equinox India Developments Limired, and eadier Indiabulls
Real Estate Limited (Folding Company) frfér mate o, 44}

€} Pari charge on the inferest secvice reserve aceount(ISRA} maintained through investment in Mutual Fund, {refer mote no 10)
sy charge

Note - 16
Lease liabilitics - non-current

Lease liabilities frefer wove 37) .30

1.20
1.20
—

|

Lease liabilitics - current

Lease liabilities frafer mase 31} 0,60 0.50
.60 0.50

l
I
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ry of

Note - 17
A Provisions - non-current
Provision for emplovers benefiss:

ing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025

All amount in € miflions, unless otherwise stared

As ar
31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Geatuity fryfer note 46) 6.20 6.10
Compensared absences (rfer note 46) 430 2400
10.50 8.10
B Provisions - current
Provision for emploves benefits:
Granuiry (rufer st 465) 010 010
Compensated absences frafer moz 46 0.10 0.1p
.20 0.20
MNote - 18
Trade payables - current
Due to miceo and small enterprises® 17.20 10.50
Dhe to related parties 440 Q.00
Due 1 others 90,80 65.60
Retennon Money 7010 3740
182,50 113,50
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2025
"u_a Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2025
Particula
A 2 Not dues Less than Lyear | 1yearto 2 years | 2 years to 3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - 17.20 - - =~ 1720
(i) Other than MSME 9410 6340 580 - - 165.30
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - =
{iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME = s X =
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2024
" o ding for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars
Mot dues Less than 1 year | 1 yearto 2 yeass | 2 years w 3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - 10.50 - - = 150
(i} Other than MEME 4810 4030 1400 - - 103.00
(tif) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -3
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -
*Disclosute under the Miceo, $mall and Medium Hnterprises Deevelopment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006™) as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
i} |the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpard to any supplier a5 at the end of each sccounting year; 17.20 10,50
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appomted day during| it Nil
iy |each accounting year;
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making pagment (which have been paid bur beyond the appointed day during the year) bui Nil il
without adding the interest specified under this Act;
the amount of interest accrued and remaining uspaid at the end of each WCCoUnting year; and Nl Nil
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dute when the inferest dues a5 above are actually paid tw the il Nil
) |small enterprise, for die purpose of disallowance a5 a deductible expendinute under section 23.
The above information regasding Micrn, Small and Medium Enterprises has been decermined o the extent such partics have beea identified on the basis of information available with the Cempany.,
MNote - 19
Oher financial liabilities - current
Expenses payable
Interest acceued but not due on borowings 110 .70
Accrued employee benefits 140 0.00
Crthers 15.30 1080
17.80 11.50
Naote - 20
Other current liabilities
Payabile to smmmey authorities 3.60 5.50
Advance from customers 3,818.20 3,511.40
3.826.80 3,516.90
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5 yof ial ag ing policies and other expl v information for the vear ended 31 March 2025
All amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note -21
Revenue from operations
Other operating mcome
Interest from customers on overdue balances - 0.50
Service teceipts 0.30 7.40
Sale of scrap 230 5
Lease income - (.00
2,60 7.90
Note -22
Other income
Interest income 0.50 9.10
Profit on sale of mvestments (net) 6.90 2.60
Income on fate valuation of financial mstruments 1.50 3.30
Interest Income on Income Tax Refund 0.00 0.00
Modification profit on de-recognition of lease conteacts 0.10 -
Miscellaneous meome 11.60 1.90
Interest income on security deposit 0.10 0.00
20,70 16.90
Note - 23
Cost of revenue
Cost meurred during the year 1,227.40 688,90
(Increase)/decrease in real estate project under development
Opening stock 4,813.00 4,124,10
Closing stock (6,(40.40) (4,813.00)
Note - 24
r‘ 4 b fi L3
Salaries and wages 100.30 51.70
Gratuity and leave encashment 650 2.00
Contobution to provident fund and other funds 1.50 1.10
Staff welfare expenses - 0.60
108.30 55.40
Note - 25
Finance costs
Interest expenses on taxation 0.00 -
Interest on lease liabilities 0.20 0.4
Corporate Guarantee charges 11.50 -
11.70 (.10
Note - 26
Other expenses
Advertisement expenses 1510 0.10
Banlk eharpes .20 0.00
Aunditor's remuneration - as auditor {refer ot (i) helow) 0.60 3.00
Communication expenses 0.30 010
Books and perndicals 0.00 0.00
Legal and professional charges 18.60 1100
Rates and taxes 4.20 4.20
Repairs and mamtenance
Plant and machinery - 0.00
Vehicles 1.00 0.30
Others .10 0.00
Brokerage and marketing expenses 20.20 5.40
Subscription fees (00 0.00
Traveling and conveyance expenses 2.50 0.30
Miseellancous expenses 040 0.30
Prmting and stationery expenses 0.00 =
Rent expenses 0.00 =
Customer incentive and other charges 12.80 -
Software expenses 0.00 0.00
Bustness support expenses 7.90 14,90
83.90 39.60
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration
Aundit fee 0,60 3.00
0.60 3.00
Note - 27
Income tax

Since the company has incureed loss during the fnancial years 2024-25 and 2023-24 hence there is 1o tax liability as per provisions of Income tax act,1961,the
caleulation of effective tax rate is not relevant and hence not given.,

Dreferred tax asset is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that furure taxable profits will be available agamst which the deductible temporary differences
and tax loss carey forward can be utilised. The unabsorbed business losses and depreciation amount to $926.50 millions on which no defereed e assers is
recognised.

The company has unabsorbed business losses amounting to ¥926,50 millons (31 Masch 2024: 2778.02 millions) that are available for offsetting for a maximum

period of eight years from the incurrence of loss. The company has nor created deferred tax assets on these unabsorbed losses considering uncertainty
involved around future business income,

Note - 28
Earnings per sharc (EPS)

The Company's Farnmgs per Share ("EPS") is determined based on the net profit atributable to the shareholdess. Basic earnings per share is computed using
the weighted avesage aumber of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is puted using the weighted average ber of commen
and dilutive common equivalent shares ling during the year meluding shate options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

The following reflects the mcome and share data used in the basic and diuted EPS computations:

Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings {182.80) (71.50)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution (18280 (71.50)
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic / diluted EPS* 50,000 50,000

*No wansaction is there which have impacted the caleulation of weighted average number of shares. No other transaction involving Equty shaves or potential
Equity shates is there between the reparting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic (3) (3,654.38) (1,430.52)
{2) Diluted ®) (3.654.38) (1.430.52)
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note - 29

A)  Financial Instruments by category

For amortised cost instraments, carsying value represents the best estimate of fair value,

All amount in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVIPL FVOCI Amortised cost
(Seenote1 | (See note 2 (See note 1 (See note 2

below) below) below) below)
Financial assets
Investments

Mutual funds 29,30 - - 87.20 - -
Cash and cash equivalents = - 30.40 = 9.70
Other bank balances - 2,50 - - 59.90
Other financial assets - - 17.40 - - 0.80
Total financial assets 29.30 - 50.30 87.20 - 70.40
Notes
1. These financial assets are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss.
2. These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Bocmwings (including accrued ) } 4,439,90 . . 3,541.20
interest)
Trade payables - - 182,50 - - 113.50
Lease liabilities - - 1.80 = = 1.30
Other finanecial liabilities - - 16.70 - - 10.80
Total financial liabilities - - 4,640.90 - - 3,666.80

(This space bas been intentionally kft blank)
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2025

B)
@

(i)

(i)

@

All amount in € millions, unless otherwise stated

Fair value measurements
Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the financial statements arc grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that ace observable for the asset ot liabiliry, either directly ot indirectly
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liabilicy.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss ( in millions)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Mutual funds
31 March 2025 29.30 - - 2930
31 March 2024 8720 - - 87.20
Total financial assets - 31 March 2025 29.30 - - 29.30
Total financial assets - 31 March 2024 87.20 - - 87.20
Valuation process and technique used to d ine fair value
Finaneial assets
Use of net asset value for mutual funds fair valuation on the basis of the statement received from investee party.
Financial fubilities
The fair value of unquoted compulsorily convertible debentures is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates cureently available for capital on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities, In addition to being sensitive to 2 reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible
change in the growth rates. The vahmtion requires management to use unobservable nputs in the model, of which the significant unabservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management
regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.
For amortised cost instrument, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value (X in millions)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
T Rt C;;E:g Fair value | Carrying Value Fair value
Financial assets
Other Ainancial assets Level 3 700 7.00 0.20 0.20
Total financial assets 7.00 7.00 0.20 0.20
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities Level 3 1.20 1.20 -
Total financial liabilities 1.20 1.20 - -

The above disclosures ate presented for non-cutrent financial assets and non-current fnancial labilities, Carrying value of current financial assets and current financial Fabilities (cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, borrowings, lease lisbility teade payables and other cusrent financial labilities) represents the best estimate of fair value,

{This ghave has beew intentivnally Joft blank)
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Al amount in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated

Note - 30

(A)

®)

Fi ial risk

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for
establishment and oversight of Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of dsk which the entity is exposed to and how the
entity manages the risk and related impact in the financial statements,

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Maximum exposure to Credit dsk primarily comes
from trade receivables. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financials institutions with high
credit rating assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies,

Company does not have any trade receivables as on reporting date.
Credit risk managment

The finance function of the Company assesses and manages credit tisk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each
class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Entity classifies its financial assets into the following categories based on the assumptions,
inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

A: Low credit risk
B: Moderate credit dsk
C: High credit risk

Assets under credit risk —

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Credit rating Particulars
A Cash and Cash Equivalents 30.40 9.70
A Other bank balances 2.50 50.90
A Other financial assets 17.40 0.80
A Investment in Mutual funds 29.30 87.20

The risk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting perod. In general, definition of
default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other maczo-economic factors,

Coredit risk exposure

Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on lifetime expected credit loss mechanism for loans, deposits and other investments .
As per the management assessment, company does not need to provide for expected credit loss on any of the financial asset.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Company does not have any trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

The company's principal sourees of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The company has no
outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Company also have an option
toareange funds by taking loans and borrowing from Holding Company. Accordingly no liquidity risk is being perceived.

Maturities of financial linbilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative

financial Habilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is insignificant.

31 March 2025 Lessthan1 |Between 1and| Between 2 | Between 3 | More than 4 Total
year 2 years and 3 years | and 4 years years

MNon-derivatives

Borrowings (including accrued interest) 2,007.90 2,432.00 - - - 4,439.90
Trade payables 18250 - - - - 182.50
Orther Financial Liabilities 17.30 1.20 - - - 18.50

Total 2,207.70 2,433.20 . ’ s 4,640.90
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in & millions, unless otherwise stated

31 March 2024 Less than 1 |Between 1 and| Between 2 | Between3 | More than 4 Total
year 2 years and 3 years | and 4 years years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 1,858.50 1,682.70 - - - 3,541.20

Trade payables 113.50 - - - - 113,50

Other Financial Liahilities 11.40 0.80 - - - 12.20

Total 1,983.40 1,683.50 - - - 3,666.90

(C) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

Company does not have any foreign currency dsks and therefore sensitivity analysis has not been shown.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash
flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

The Company’s variable rate borrowing is subject to interest rate. Below is the overall exposure of the borrowing: (% in millions)
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowing - .
Fixed rate borrowing 2,432.00 1,682.7
Total borrowings 2,432.00 1,682.70
Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from varable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rares. (X in millions)
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Interest rates — increase by 1%
Interest rates — decrease by 1%

Price risk
Company does not have any price risk




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

vof 1 ing policies and other ¢ pl y infe ion to the fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in & millions, uniess otherwise stated
Note - 31

Lease related disclosures as per Ind AS 116
The Company has leases for office building. With the exception of short-teem leases and leases aflow-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a aght-of-use asset and 4 lease

liability. Varable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded feom the initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets, The Company clssifies its tight-ofouse
asSets in 4 consistent manner to its propenty, plantand equipment.

Each lease geneeally imposes a restriction that, unless there is # conteactual right for the Company to sublease the asset 1o another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some
leases contain an option 1o extend the lease for 2 further teem. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings and other
premises the Company must keep those properties in a good state of fepair and retuen the propestics in their orginal condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company i requiced 1o pay
maintenanee fees in aceordance with the lease eontracts,

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability

The expense relating to pa not included in the it of the lease liability is as follows:

X in millions)
[Particutars | 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
lShon-mm leases r - I -

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2025 i5 T (.60 Millions (31 March 2024 T 0,40 Millions).

Total expense recognised during the year

® in millions)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest on lease habilities 0.20 0.10
chgreci: tion on right of use asset 0.60 040

Maturity of lease liabilities

The lease lizbilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:

@ in millions)
31 March 2025 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Moare than 3 Total
Lease payments 0.70 0.80 0.60 - 2.10
Interest expense 0,20 0.10 0.00 - 0.30
Net present values 0.50 0.70 (.60 - 1.50
31 March 2024 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Toatal
years
Lease payments 0.a0 0.70 0.20 - 150
Interest expense 0.10 0.10 0.00 - 0.20
Met present values .50 0.60 0.20 - 1.30
Information about ion and ination options (31 March 2025)
Right of use assets Number of Range of Average Number of MNumber of Number ofleases—‘
leases ining term ining lease leases with leases with with termination
(in years) term extension option | purchase option option
(in years)
Office premises 1.00 2.00 2,00 - - 1.00
Information about ion and termination options(31 March 2024)
Right of use assers Number of Range of Average Number of Number of Number of leases
leases ining term ining lease leases with leases with with termination
(in years) term extension option | purchase option option
(in years)
Office premises 1.00 200 200 1.00 1.00 -
Bifurcation of lease liabilities at the end of the year in current and non-current (¥ in millions)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1) Current liability (amount due within one year) 0.60 0.50
b) Non-cuerent Fability (amount due over one year) 1.20 0580
Total lease liabilities at the end of the year 1.80 1.30

(Thir sprace b besn intentioially left blamdy)




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
S v of 1 ing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Al amount in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated
Note - 32

Details with respect to the Benami Properties

No procesdings have been initiated or pending against the entity under the Benami Transactions (Prohibirions) Act, 1988 for the Fear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Undisclosed income

There i no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of sccounts, MNa such income i surrendered o disclosed as income during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 51 March 2024 in the tax
assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

MNote - 34

Details of Crypto Curreney or Vietual Curren

Profit or loss an ta i Iving Ceypto cuerency or Viemal Currency Mo transaction during the vear ended 31 March 2025 und 31 March 2024
Amount of cuerency held as at the cepoming dare NO transaction during the year ended 31 biarch 2025 and 31 March 2024
[Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypeo Currency / virnsal cucrencr No transiction dusng the year ended 31 Macch 2025 and 31 Maech 2024
Note - 35

Ratio Analysis

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Particulars [Numeratar | Denominator 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Varance
Cueeerit Ratio Current Assets Cursent Liabiliies 1.02 092 11.49%
Drebe Service Coverage Ratio* Eamnings available for debt services Debt Service NA NA NA

Debt Equity Ratio Total Debrs Shacsholder's Equiey (1.96) {L67) 17.02%
Retuen on Equity (ROE# Net Profit Afrer Tayes Average Share holder's Equiry NA NA NA
Trade Receivables menover catio§ Revenue | Average Trade Receivable NA NA Na
Teade Payables tumover rarp Purchage of services and ather CRpenses Average Trade Payable 529 497 647
Met Capatal Tumover Ratio§ Revenue Warling Capital NA NA NA
MNet profit eatin® [ Met profit Revenug NA NA NAJ
Retum of Capital Emplayed (ROCES Eamning before interest tuxes Capital Employed NA I NA
Inventoey mmover catiod Cost of Goods sold Average loventory NA NA|

* Ratio can not be calculated dus o negative eamings in previous and eursent yeat,

# Ratio can not be caloulated due to neganve share holder's cquity in previcus and current year.

** In the real estate business, revenue dlong with the corresponding eost to sales is cecognised on the point in time basis and hence, the increase and decrease will not be direcdy ascertained basis
incredse /decrease in business, Accardingly, the current year satios ate nor comparable with previous year,

§ Ratio can not be caloulated due 1o oo revenug in the cuerent year as well as in Previous year.

~ Ratio can nor be calouluted due to losses during the cucrent vear as well 2 in previous year.

Following eatios ace not applicable in view of the fact that either numesater oe dencminaroe does not have gy vilues-

Net profit ratio, Trade teceivables numover satia, Trade payables mmover o, Net capieal tuenover ratio, Inventory tumover tatio and Retum of Capiral Emplayed (ROCE) ratio.

Note - 36

Wilful Defaulter:
o bank o financial instintion has declaced the company as "Wilful defaulier” during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 Magch 2024,

Note - 37
Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:

Particulars Description

Transactions wheee i entity has provided any advance, loan, or invested funds 1o any|No such transaction has taken place Guting the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2033
other person {s) or entity/ entities, including foreign entities.

Transactions where an entity has veceived any fund from any pecson (s) oc entity,’ entities,|No such transaction hias taken place during the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
including foreign entity.

Neote - 38
Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No-transaction hes been muide with the company struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 of section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 39

Note - 40
Compliance with sumber of layers of companies:

The company has complied with the number of layess prescrbed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number 6f Layecs) Rules, 2017 and no layess of companics has
been established beyond the Timit presceibed as per above sad section / ules, ducing the pear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 41

Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

No loan or advances in the ndmre of loans are grnted o the promoters, dicectors, key munagenal persons and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or joindy with any
other person, during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, that ase:

(@) repayable on demand or

(b} without specifying any reoms or period of eepayment

Note - 42
Code on Social Security, 2020:

The Indian Padiament has approved the Code on Social Secusity, 2020 which would impact the contrbutions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Minustry of Labour and Emgloyment
had celeased draft rules for the Code on Social Secutity, 2020 on 13 November 2020, and invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under consideration by the Ministry. The Company vall assess the

irngact and its evaluation onee the subject rules are notified, The Company will give Appeopriate impact in its financial statements in dhe peiod in which, the Code becomes effective and the related nules w
deteemine the financial impact are published,




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
Summary of material accounting policies
the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in T millions,

Note - 43

Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

® To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,

® To provide adequate return to shareholders

position, where net debt is equal to non-

current borrowing (inclu
and short-term borrowing net of cash and

Note — 44
Related party transactions

rlying assets. The Company mana

and other explanatory information to the financial statements for

unless otherwise stated

and

ges its capital tequitements by reviewing its net debt
ding current maturities of non-current borrowings)

cash equivalent and other bank balances.

Citra Properties
Key management personnel*
2024)
Other enterprises under the control or significant
influence of Key Management Personnel of the

holding company and their relatives with whom
there were transactions

Embassy Servic

2025)

llaationship Name of the telated parties —‘
Related parties exercising control
Holding company Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox
India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited)
Other related parties Sepset Real Estate Limited
Fellow Subsidiaties* Airmid Real Estate Limited

Mr. Sameer Khanna (Whole-time director-
Mt. Abhishek Rajninath Surye (Whole-tim

Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.f. 24 January

Limited
till 09 July 2024)
¢ director-from 10 July

es Private Limited (w.c.f. 24 January 2025)

—
* with whom transactions have been made during the year/ previous year
(i) Statement of transactions:
Key management personnel
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 ]
Managerial remuneration
| Mr. Sameer Khanna - 8.40




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in T millions,

Related parties other than key managerial personnel

unless otherwise stated

Nature of transactions

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiaries

31 March 25

31 March 24

31 Match 25

31 March 24

Holding Company:

Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly known
as Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

Loans and advances taken/ (tepaid), net (1,826.20)

(626.30) :

Business Support Expenses 14.00

31.80 :

Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

Sepset Real Estate Limited -

- 70.10

Airmid Real Estate Limited -

2 1,305.90

Citra Properties Limited =

= 599.20

Corporate Guarantee given by

Holding Company:

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known
as Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

2,500.00

1,750.00 -

Other enterprises under the control or significant influence of Key
Management Personnel of the holding company and their relatives with
whom there were transactions

31 Match 25

31 March 24

Site Management Fee

Embassy Services Private Limited (w.ef. 24 January 2025)

0.50

Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.£f 24 January 2025)

2.80

(ii) Statement of balances outstanding:

As at
31 March 2025

31 March 2024

As at

Holding Company:

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India
Developments Limited, and eatlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

Loans and advance taken

1,826.20

T'tade Payable

4.40

31.30

Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

Sepset Real Estate Limited

101.70

31.60

Airmid Real Estate Limited

1,305.90

Citra Properties Limited

599.20

Other enterprises under the control or significant influence of Key
Management Personnel of the holding company and their relatives with
whom there were transactions

31 March 25

31 March 24

Embassy Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 ]anuar}/élﬁ‘;\)‘j{

0.50

.

Site Management Fee¥* ﬁ
N
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TAPIR CONSTRUCTION S LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 Match 2025

All amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated

'Eechnique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025) 0.30 j

Corporate Guatantee given by

Holding Company:
Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly known as Equinox India
| Developments Limited, and earlier Tndiabulls Real fiotos. Limited) 2000 | i

*Includes balances prior to the dute on which the entsy became related pariy.

Note — 45
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities:

[ Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |

Demand raised in tespect of differential intetest under VAT* - -
Demand cum Show Cause raised with tespect to ITC claimed through

5 :

TRAN-1 40 S0
Demand issued for SGST credit claimed in Tran-1, appeal pending

L ’ : 0.10 0.10
with Appellate Authority

* The company has received a demand 0f 0.10 millions from department of GST, Maharashtra, period covered by
the otder from 01 April 2017 to 30 June 2017 for levy of interest u/s 30(2) of Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002.

Legal Case:

believes that there is a teasonably likelihood that the there is no material liability will devolve on the Company in
respect of these matters,

Bank Guarantee

Guarantee provided by the bank (secured by way of fixed deposits of the Company): ¥ 2.50 millions (Previous year ¥
2.50 millions).

There are no other contingent liabilities and commitments to be reported as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
Note — 46
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company has made ¥ 1.50 millions (31 March 2024 - T 1.10 millions) contribution in respect of provident fund.

Defined benefit plan e
The Company has the following defined benefit plan




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in T millions,

Gratuity (unfunded)
¢ Compensated absences (unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

unless otherwise stated

can impact liability.

 Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the
liability.
Mortality risk Actual death and liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valuation can impact the liabilities,
Salaty risk Actual salaty increase will increase the liability. Increase in salary increase rate
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.
Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change
L of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations

Compensated absences

settlement for any of these obligations. However based on past expetience, the Com
to take the full amount of accrued leave or requite payment within the next 1
independent actuarial tepott, only a certain amount of provision has been present
current. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 17.35 y

Actuarial (gain) /loss on obligation:

pany does not expect all employees
2 months, therefore based on the
ed as current and remaining as non-
ears (31 March 2024: 16.24 years).

(X in millions)

31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Actuarial (Gain) / loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.00 0.00
Actuarial Loss / (gain) on arising from change in experience adjustment (1.40) (O.20)J

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

(} in millions)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 |

Current service cost

Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-current

410 0.70
Interest cost 0.20 0.10
Actuarial gain on obligation (1.40) (0.10)
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 2.90 0.70
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under: (X in millions)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 2.20 1.50
Current service cost 4.10 0.70
Interest cost 0.20 0.10
Actuarial gain on obligation (1.40) (0.10)
Benefits paid (0.70) .
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 4.40 2.20 |

(X in millions)

A&‘ J‘o
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
| a) Cutrent liability (amount due within one year) 0.10 0.10
b) Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 4.30 2.10
Total projected benefit obligation at the enm{ 4.40 2.20




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in € millions,

unless otherwise stated

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial ass umptions were used;

Particulars Compensated absences
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15% 7.22%
Salaty escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian z‘ﬁssuted Lives Indian zfxssured Lives
Mortality (2012 -14) Mortality (2012 -14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of pre

value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistan
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to governm
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the relate

management’s historical experience,

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

sent value of defined benefit obligation and fair

ce of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
ent bonds of relevant economic markets and that
d obligation. Other assumptions are based on

(X in millions)

Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024

a) April 2025 — March 2026 0.10 April 2024 — March 2025 0.10
| b) April 2026 — March 2027 0.10 April 2025 — March 2026 0.00

<) April 2027 — March 2028 0.10 | April 2026 — March 2027 0.00
| d) April 2028 — March 2029 0.10 April 2027 — March 2028 0.00

e) April 2029 — March 2030 0.30 April 2028 — March 2029 0.20

f April 2030 — March 2031 0.10 [ April 2029 — March 2030 0.20
L2) April 2031 onwards 3.70 April 2030 onwards 1.70 |

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability
—

(% in millions)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 4.40 2.10
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.10)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.30 0.10
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 4.40 2.10
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.30 0.10
L b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.10)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal ate not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as pet the Pa

yment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who

are In continuous setvice for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
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TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the fi

the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in €millions,

Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income

nancial statements for

unless otherwise stated

(X in millions)
[ 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Actuarial gain on arising from change in demographic assumption 5 -
Actuatial (Gain) / loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.10 0.10
Actuarial loss on atising from change in experience adjustment (3.70) 0.40

ﬂount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as undet: (X in millions)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 3.20 1.00
[ntetest cost 0.40 0.40
|E_xpense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 3.60 1.40

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under: (R in millions)
31 Match 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 6.20 5.40
Past Service Cost 1.70 -
Current service cost 1.60 1.00
Interest cost 0.40 0.40
Benefits paid - (1.10)
Total actuarial (Gain) / loss on obligation (3.60) 0.50
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the yeat 6.30 6.20

Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in curtent and non-current

® in millions)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a Current liability (amount due within one yeat) 0.10 0.10
b) Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 6.20 6.10

| Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.20

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
; Indian Assuted Lives Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Harlioralls (@012-14) (2012-14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds

ant economic markets and that

have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on

management’s historical expetience,




TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated

ll\élturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation (X in millions)
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024
a) | April 2025 — March 2026 0.10 | April 2024 — March 2025 0.10
b) Aptil 2026 — March 2027 0.10 | April 2025 — March 2026 0.10
<) April 2027 — March 2028 0.10 | April 2026 — March 2027 0.10
d) April 2028 — March 2029 0.10 | April 2027 — March 2028 0.10
5) April 2029 — March 2030 0.90 | April 2028 — March 2029 0.20
}3) Aprtil 2030 — March 2031 0.10 | April 2029 — March 2030 0.70
L g April 2031 onwards 4.90 April 2030 onwards 4.90
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability (X in millions)
31 March 2025 31 Matrch 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.10
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.30)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.40 0.30
Impact of the change in salaty increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.10
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.40 0.30
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.40) (0.30)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated,

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before
retitement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Since the number of employees in the previous year were insignificant, the disclosures for employee benefits —
compensated absences and gratuity for the ptevious year were not presented.

Note —47
Segmental information

Note - 48
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

A. The changes in the Company’s bottowings arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
K in millions)

Particulars Non-current Total

borrowings

(including

cutrent maturities)
Net debt as at 01 April 2023 3,404.80 3,404.80
Proceeds from cutrent/ non-current borrowings (includjng current 1,750.00 1,750.00
maturities)
Repayment of current/non-current borrowings (including current (1,594.70) (1,594.70)
maturities)
Non cash adjustments (19.60) (19.60)
Interest Expense P 136.00 136.00
Interest Paid LI\ (135.30) (135.30)
met debt as at 31 March 2024 [SF Ve 3,541.20 3,541.20 |
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TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in & millions, unless otherwise stated

Proceeds from current/ non-current borrowings (mclucl.ing current 9,864.60 9,864.60 —‘
maturities)

Repayment of current/non-current borrowings (including current (8,965.60) (8,965.60)
maturities)

Non cash adjustments (0.70) (0.70)
Interest Expense 274.70 274.70
Interest Paid (273.60) (273.60)

Net debt as at 31 March 2025 4,439.90 4,439.90

B. The changes in the Company’s lease liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
( in millions)

@rﬁculats Amount \‘
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2023 (cuttent and non-cutrent) -
Recognition of lease contracts 1.60
Interest on lease liabilities 0.10
Payment of lease liabilities (0.40)
De-recognition of lease contracts -
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 (current and non-current) 1.30
Recognition of lease contracts 1.80
Interest on lease liabilities 0.20
Payment of lease liabilities (0.60)
De-recognition of lease contracts (0.90)
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 (curtent and non-cutrent) 1.80

Note -~ 49

Audit trail

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, for the financial year commencing 1 April 2023, every company which uses accounting softwares for maintaining
its books of account, shall use only such accounting softwares which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and
every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such
changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what level
edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved during the year and continues to evolve.

The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the yeat, which have features of
tecording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except one software where audit trial (edit
log) facility at database level was not available. Recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be disabled using restricted
ptivileged rights for direct data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary controls in place,
which are operating effectively, this feature will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at database
level.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for recotd retention
except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting software for
the period from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 as applicable.

Note — 50

Business Combination of Holding Company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT"), on 7 January 2025, approved
the scheme of amalgamation of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property
Developments Private Limited ("EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls-Real Estate Limited) and their respective shareholders and
creditors ("Scheme") pursuant to sec 230 to 232 o / aqies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the
Act, read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangéfng nations) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT
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All amount in Tmillions, unless otherwise stated

Otdet, EDL and NAM have filed the cettified true copy of the court order with the tespective jurisdictional Registrar
of Companies on 24 January 2025, thereby giving effect to the scheme ("Effective Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, namely JV Holding Private
Limited (JVHPL), four individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promotet/Promoter Group"), became
the largest shareholders of the EDL, the company's holding company.

Note - 51
Other matters

a.  The Company has not entered into any derivative insttument during the year. The Company does not have any

foreign currency exposures towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not been
hedged.

b. In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required
to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

d. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) , whether directly or indirectly
which is having a net worth of ¥ 101,709.80 millions. The Company will get all necessary support financially and
otherwise from its holding company and thus, the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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